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InPost S.A. 
Attn.: Management Board and Supervisory Board  
70, route d’Esch 
L – 1470 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg 
 
 
by e-mail: mharris@inpost.eu, eliane.koelmans@halsten.nl 
 
 
The Hague, 13 May 2022 
 
subject: VEB questions AGM InPost S.A. 
 
VEB registration number: 409867 
 
 
 
Dear Board members,   
 
With respect to the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of InPost S.A. (‘InPost’) of 19 May 2022 
European Investors-VEB would like to submit several questions which are outlined below. 
 
We appreciate receiving substantive answers to these questions during the AGM.   
 
QUESTIONS VEB 
 
Agenda item 2. Presentation of the report from Management Board and Supervisory Board 
2021 
 

1. InPost’s shares currently trade at roughly a third of the IPO-price of 16 euros.  
 

a. Does InPost believe the low valuation makes the company vulnerable to a 
takeover?  
 

b. In case of takeover interest, could InPost assure it will adequately represent the 
interests of minority shareholders? 

 
c. In a scenario of takeover interest by Advent, which systems and procedures are 

in place to deal with the inherent conflict of interest and information advantage 
of Advent?   

 
2. Return on invested capital is depressed due to the takeover of Mondial Relay. In last 

year’s AGM, InPost noted that the “expected value accretion from the proposed 
acquisition is going to become increasingly visible over the short and medium-term”.   

 
a. What ROI is required on this acquisition so that the deal is value accretive?  

 
b. How does InPost define ‘short and medium term’?  
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3. The acquisition of Mondial Relay has been effectuated. Is the integration proceeding 
according to the original plan, and what are the key challenges? 

 
4. Could InPost provide a split between the revenue earned with fixed-price contracts and 

contracts indexed to inflation?  
 

5. InPost does not have a separate department for the internal audit function; however, it 
is in the progress of establishing the function. Could InPost provide the timeline for 
installing the internal audit function?    

 
Agenda item 8. Acknowledgment and approval of the Remuneration Report 2021 
 

6. VEB considers the level of disclosure in the remuneration report subpar as - amongst 
other - only an overall score for the short- and long-term targets is published. Why 
doesn’t InPost disclose how the actual performance compared to the ‘minimum’, ‘at 
target’, and ‘maximum’ performance levels for the STI and LTI targets? 

 
7. In the remuneration report, it is mentioned that the supervisory board decided not to 

impose the condition that shares, that have vested under the STI-plan, will be forfeited 
if board members leave the company within three years after the payout.  

 
In the remuneration report, the supervisory board mentions it will re-examine the 
decision not to forfeit bonus shares as part of a broader compensation plan review, and 
amendments will be proposed at the 2023 AGM. 

 
a. Could InPost clarify the rationale for this decision? 

 
b. Why didn’t InPost postpone this decision to next year so that shareholders could 

vote on the amendment?    
 

8. In the annual report, it is stated that the exit date for the purpose of the share-based 
program-valuation was extended as a result of the decreasing market valuation. Could 
InPost explain why it believes this adjustment is appropriate? 

 
Agenda item 9. Granting authorization to the Company to acquire its own shares, subject to 
the following terms and conditions 
 

9. The company seeks authorization to purchase InPost shares for five years. Why does 
InPost propose such an extraordinarily long period?  

 
Agenda item 10. Renewal of appointment of the external auditor 
 

10. InPost published an addendum regarding the renewal of the appointment of the 
auditor as rating agencies raised questions about the auditor's independence due to 
high and unexplained non-audit fees.  

 
a. Does InPost agree that the disclosure in the annual report regarding the audit 

fee is subpar?  
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b. Could InPost explain the difference between the total audit fees disclosed in 
the annual report of 1,9 million PLN compared to 2,18 million PLN in the 
addendum? 

 
c. Could InPost explain why the fee for the issuance of the comfort letter looks 

relatively high at 1,56 million PLN?  
 
 
 

 
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
European Investors-VEB  
 


